Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on. COMMERCE
Date: February 15, 1979

Page: One

Members present:

Chairman Jeffrey Assemblyman Sena

Vice Chairman Robinson Assemblyman FitzPatrick
Assemblyman Bennet Assemblyman Rusk
Assemblyman Bremner Assemblyman Tanner
Assemblyman Chaney Assemblyman Weise

Assemblyman Horn

Guests Present:. See attached list

Chairman Jeffrey called the meeting to order at 3:10 p.m.
* Chairman Jeffrey noted that Assemblyman Price was ill and
would not be testifying as introducer of the bill, but that
the hearing would continue and hear other testimony regarding
AB 202.

AB 202: George Vargas, attorney from Reno, representing the
American Insurance Association was first to address the committee
and stated that though the bill, on the surface, has very wide
appeal, that it was not a workable plan. Mr. Vargas then added
that he felt since fire insurance was included in the bill, he
should address that area. He stated that you could have a long
period of time loss-free and then if you had one fire, there

. cculd be a huge loss which would wipe out all the premiums you
ever paid in plus a great deal more. ;

Mr. Vargas stated that in regard to automobile insurance
that the rates are calculated by classification of drivers and
that those who have a very bad record, generally have higher
rates which are imposed by a surcharge.

In answer to a question from Mr. Bennet, Mr. Vargas stated
that the large claims are paid through the "pool theory" which
is the basis of all insurance.

Mr. Bremner stated that since the insurance commissioner
was the person who would be setting the amount of discount that
it could be set as low as 1%, and that he felt that the primary
thrust of the bill was that there be some kind of discount for
those people who historically had good records.

Dr. Robinson stated that he thought the bill originally
was relative to auto insurance only. Chairman Jeffrey explained
that Mr. Price has stated to him that the intent of the bill was
that people would not have to pay excessive surcharges on their
policies if they had ‘gotten traffic tickets, but been accident
free for a five year period.

would promote the already increasing practice of people paying
for minor accidents themselves rather that turning the claims

‘ Mr. Tanner asked Mr. Vargas if he felt that this bill

(Commiitee Minutes)

A Form 70 8769 444



Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on COMMERCE
Date:........ February 15, 1979
Page: Two

‘ into their insurance company. Mr. Vargas stated that .he did
feel this type of legislation would result in that kind of
practice.

Next to testify on this bill was Mr. Virgil Anderson,
representing Automobile Association of America, who stated
that he agreed with Mr. Vargas' remarks, but added that he
felt the bill was one sided inasmuch as it provided for a re-
duction for good drivers, but did not provided increases for
drivers with bad records. He noted that the average cost for
auto insurance in the Reno area is about $500.00, 60% of which
is for material damage to the vehicle and 35% of which is for
other coverage such as uninsured motorist, bodily damage and
no fault. He read to the committee from a Wall Street Journal
article which is attached and marked as Exhibit "A", which
points up the inflationary trend in the auto market and he
pointed out that insurance rates will continue to:increase due
to inflation and mandating a reduction in rates will not solve
the insurance premium problems with confront the public.

Mr. Rusk asked Mr. Anderson if he agreed with the consen-
sus that 10% of the drivers caused 80% of the problems relating
to increased premiums and, if so, what would he suggest to bene-
fit the careful drivers. Mr. Anderson stated that he did agree
in general with that kind of statement and that some companies
already gave good drivers the very lowest rate possible within
their structures and surcharged the drivers with bad records.

There was a discussion among the committee regarding tkhe
general inflationary problems facing all areas and the parallels
between insurance protection and services.paid for Ly property
taxes, i.e. fire protection costs, and it was pointed out that
the bill should, perhaps, have a fault provisions written into
it. Mr. Weise pointed out that insurance is not an equity type
investment; that it is paid to forestall having to pay yourself
for a huge loss which might occur.

Mr. Vargas interjected that most insurance companies which
issue stock currently rate on age, marital status and sex of
the applicant; the higher the actuarial chance is for the person
being involved in an accident, the higher the premium rate.

Mr. Anderson stated that the rating system between companies
is highly competitive and that the differences from company to
company is reflected by giving discounts for accident free driv-
ing, non-smokers, etc., and cherging higher rates for persons
under 25 who are unmarried, or have a high rate of traffic of-
fenses. It was also noted that you could decrease the premium
on your policy by increasing the amount of the deductible on the
policy, as is currently being done by many policyholders.

‘ Next to testify was Mr. Richard Garrod, Special Representa-
tive for Farmers Insurance Group, who stated thkat Farmers current-

{Committes Minutes)

A Form 70 : 8769 0 145



Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on COMMERCE
Date: February 15, 1979
Page: Three

ly gives good driver discounts and other premium considera-
ations to their policyholders. BHe also stated that their com-
pany hasn't made a profit in Nevada for more than two years and
that if they are maridated to decrease their premiums in this
manner that that might be a determining factor in the company's
decision as to whether or not to remain in Nevada.

He also said that he felt if the people thought they would
lose their accident-free rate if they reported an accident, that
they might in the case of a one car accident try to fradulently
represent the accident as a theft, etc. He also pointed out that
this bill might induce a person to stay with a company which was
not really doing a good job for him if he thought he would be get-
ting the accident-free rate sooner than if he switched companies.

"He further pointed out that hit and run and vandalism type claims

are currently not chargeable against a person's record with his
company.

Mr. Charles Knaus, Casualty Actuary for the Insurance Divi-
sion, was next to address the committee. He stated in response
to an earlier question from Chairman Jeffrey regarding regula-
tion PC 21, having to do with speeding tickets on one's driving’
record, dgenerally that PC 21 was retroactive and that it did
apply to offenses which had happened in the past as well as
those which happen in the future. He stated that their division
had tried to inform the individual insurance companies of this
provision. He reinforced the comment made in earlier testimony

.that there is presently a competitiveness between the companies

relative to rating. He proceeded to explain to the committee
that in the past some companies which have given an accident-
free rate have, prior to putting that lower rate into effect,
raised their overall rate base to compensate for that reduction.

Mr. Weise asked Mr. Knaus if, in effect, this would lead
to insurance companies anticipating higher losses and passing
this on the their customers and then giving the discount based
upcn those figures. Mr. Knaus replied that the Insurance Divi-
sion would not allow that to happen without considerable justi-
fication. He also stated that he wondered how much of a break
would have to be given to the customer for the customer to feel
he was being benefitted.

In answer to questions from Mr. Bennet and Mr. Weise, Mr.
Knaus stated that currently the division reviews rate levels of
the companies ever year and the classification within the com-
panies approximately every two years, depending on the company's
history. Mr. Chaney asked Mr. Knaus what kind of a profit mar-
gin was allowed for the insurance companies and how a ccmpany,
such as Farmers Insurance Group, could go without making any
money for two years and still be operating in Nevada. Mr. Knaus
stated that Farmers had been given permission to increase their
rates to stay sclvent in this state and that the division had to
make sure that a company had adequate prcfits and equity to pro-

vide for losses and costs.
(Committee Minutes)

A Form 70 8769 <

146



Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature

Assembly Committee on COMMERCE
Date: February 15, 1979
Page: Four

It was pointed out to the committee by Mr. FitzPatrick
~that ultimately the Insurance Commissioner is responsible to
see that the insurance companies are solvent because if they
are not, the deficiency must ke made up out of the Commis-
sioners guarantee fund, in other words, by tax dollars.

That concluded the testimony on AB 202.

SB 7: After a brief discussion of the possible implications
of this bill Mr. Weise moved to Indefinitely Postpone the
bill and the motion was seconded by Mr. Rusk; however, the
motion did not carry and Chairman Jeffrey stated that action
on the bill would be held until a later time.

AB 216: Chairman Jeffrey asked for action on this bill and
Mr. Weise moved to Do Pass, Mr. FitzPatrick seconded the
Motion and the motion carried with all members voting aye
except Dr. Rcbinson and Mr. Bennet, who were excused during
this portion of the meeting, and Mr. Weise who abstained.

AB 207: Chairman Jeffrey asked for action on this bill and
Mr. Rusk moved to Do Pass, Mr. Weise seconded the motion and
it carried unanimously with Dr. Robinson and Mr. Bennet ex-
cused.

AB 150: Asgsemblyman Horn read the proposed amendment to the
bill to the committee, said amendment number 76 is attached

as Exhibit "B". He also stated that he had been contacted

by the Hilton Hotel in Las Vegas and that they had suggested
that they would be in agreement with the bill if the committee
would delete lines 7 and 8 from the bill. Mr. Horn stated
that he would not object to this deletion.

Mr. Bremner and Mr. Weise stated that they had received
comments in opposition to this bill from their constituents.
And, it was also asked if there had been any feedback from the
University as to whether or not they felt this amendment would
take care of their concerns. It was noted that there had been
copies of the amendment sent to Mr. Ireland and that he had
thus far made no comment. It was the consensus of the committee
that Larry Lessly, Deputy Attorney General for the University,
be contacted in regard to this matter and asked to return his
opinion to the committee. :

Chairman Jeffrey and Mr. Rusk offered several bill draft-
ing requests to the committee for committee introduction and
there were no objections to proceeding with them.

" There being nc further business, Chairman Jeffrey adjourned

the meeting at 4:30 p.m.
Res tfully submitted,
W, s
a D. Chandler, Secretary

(Committee Minutes)

A Form 70 ‘ 8769 % 4’?



Date of Hearing_lazzillzza_

ASSEMBLY COMMERCE COMMITTEE

GUEST LIST
NAME REPRESENTING ) WISH TO SPEAK
(Please print) (organization) Yes No.
(
@eo.L.,MAQ?sQS' Awnep, LS. /Qé&‘m )N
_MZE&/A Auprrsan AA4A4A X

148




wE mhwanmdm&emhrthmcm

. meaddedchargeotﬂaw.mdithasnt

ey e A e v IR T BISNm g S {0 .
\ . v . : ™ 3
% - A e ¢ o g 5
. . !

EXHIBIT "A"

madeitsfom‘thpriee increue.intheform
of the addition of glass-belted radial tires at

any plans to raise delivery charges.

-. Ford's increase, effective Feb. 5, reflects
“general inflationary pressures which af-
fected transportation costs,” a spokesman
said. GM also said the charges were to pass
through transportation and related costs,
noting that a raﬂ freight charge increase
‘was approved by the federal government in

bl ST IR

T
-

g i e

- Coe 2
~ . . b s S
S P

LV e—p—

43



EMBLY ACTION

F4 ted

Lost

Date:

Initial:
Concurred in
Not concurred in
Date:

Initial:

O
O

O

EXHIBIT "B"

1979 REGULAR SESSION (60TH)

SENATE ACTION

Adopted

Lost
Date:
Initial
Concurr

O
O

-
-

ed in O

Not concurred in [

Date:
Initial

Assembly AMENDMENT BLANK

AMENDMENTS to Assembly
Feiat

Bill No. 150
BDR. 58-756

RoselutionNew

Proposed by Committee on Commerce

Amendment qu

(B

Amend section 1, page 1, line 3, by deleting "A" and inserting

Il‘l.

Except as provided in subsection 2, a".

Amend section 1, page 1, line 4; by deleting "view" and inserting

"viewing at the

time it takes place".

' Amend section 1, page 1, line 6, by deleting "1." and inserting

Il—(i)-.".

Amend section

"_(1_3—2-".

Amend section

1, page 1, line 7, by deleting "2." and inserting

1, page 1, after line 8 by inserting:

"2. Telecasts of athletic events governed by the national

collegiate athletic association or by the association of

- intercollegiate athletics for women are excluded from the

provisions of subsection 1."

Amend the title of the bill, line 2, by deleting:

"of a sporting or special event;" and inserting

"of certain sporting or special events;".

o: B &E
LCB File
Journal~

/’J'

Engrossment

Bill

2~12-79 Drafted by JSP:ml

04 e

150



